
Communities, Equality and Local Government 
Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
27 June 2013  

 

Meeting time: 
09:00 

 

For further information please contact:  

Policy: Marc Wyn Jones 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8505 / 029 2089 8600 
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk  

  

 

Agenda 
 

 

Private Pre-meeting - 09.00 - 09.15 

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions (09.15)  

2 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 4 
(09.15 - 09.45) (Pages 1 - 4)  
Show Racism the Red Card Wales (SRTRC) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 1 
 
Sunil Patel, SRTRC Campaign Manager 
Ashok Ahir, SRTRC Welsh Advisory Committee member  
  

3 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 5 
(09.45 - 10.35) (Pages 5 - 10)  
National Union of Teachers 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 2 
 
Stuart Williams, Unions Principal Officer  

Break - 10.35 - 10.45 

Public Document Pack



4 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 6 
(10.45 - 11.25) (Pages 11 - 16)  
Welsh Local Government Association  
CELG(4)-20-13  - Paper 3 
 
Dr Chris Llewelyn, Director of Lifelong Learning, Leisure & Information  
Peter Gomer, Policy Advisor, Leisure, Culture & Heritage  
Iwan Davies, Head of Culture, Tourism and Recreation 
 
 
  

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the remainder of the meeting   

6 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales - 
key issues (11.25 - 11.40) (Pages 17 - 21)  
CELG(4)-20-13 – Private paper 4  

7 Papers to note   

 
Letter from Minister for Natural Resources and Food - update on actions 
following the meeting on 23 May 2013  (Pages 22 - 23) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 5 
 
 

Letter from the Minister for Culture and Sport - Update on action following the 
meeting on 15 May 2013  (Pages 24 - 31) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 6 
 
 
 

Letter from Chair of Petitions Committee re petition - Coed Cadw Cymru  (Pages 
32 - 35) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 7 
 
 

Letter from Steve Thomas CBE, Chief Executive, Welsh Local Government 
Association re meeting on 5 June 2013  (Page 36) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 8 
 
 

Letter from Paula Walters, Director, NHS Centre for Equality and Human Rights  
(Pages 37 - 38) 
CELG(4)-20-13 – Paper 9 
 



Paper 1 

National Assembly for Wales 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

Inquiry into participation levels in sport in Wales  

Response from : Show Racism the Red Card Wales 
 
Background 
 

1. Show Racism the red Card Wales is a small organisation operating across 
Wales.  The majority of its funding comes from Big Lottery Wales and 
partnership agreements with 11 Welsh Local Authorities.  In addition, it 
receives financial support from the Football Association of Wales to the tune 
of £15,000 and in kind support from Trade unions.  We have recently received 
support from two legal firms, Thompsons and Simpson Millar. Contrary to 
public opinion we receive no money from the football clubs, football players, 
or any other institution connected to football. 

 
2. Our work is unique as we work with sporting role models.  We primarily work 

with young children in schools, primary and secondary, young people in youth 
clubs and have in the last two years initiated a teacher training programme 
working to support teachers in tackling racism in schools setting.  

 
3. We produce education material for use in and by schools in tacking racism, 

challenging homophobia, negative images of refugees and asylum seekers, 
Islamphobia, and on combating the new far right. 

 
Our response 
 

4. SRTRC Wales welcomes the committee’s initiative in holding this enquiry.  It 
is something we have been arguing for and believe it necessary to challenge 
institutionalised perceptions that there is NO problem in Wales.  

 
5. Further our evidence has to be read in two contexts.  Firstly as from our 

experience and knowledge of working with over 10,000 children annually on 
these issues, we consider ourselves to have gained a unique insight in to the 
barriers that face young people, in particular minority ethnic communities in 
sport and a variety of other fields.  

 
6. Secondly as we mention below, there is little research available and we know 

that in the past this has been used as a reason to not do anything whilst we 
await result of new research findings.  We urge the committee to consider the 
qualitative evidence of our experience, and knowledge of working with young 
people and communities, whilst supporting our efforts to secure a strong 
robust independent evidence base. 

 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



7. In respect of the areas you want to examine.  Our evidence adds real value to 
the following:     

 
55The availability of datasets and statistics to measure participation levels in 
sport, particularly those disaggregated by equality strand and socio-economic 
groups;  

55The opportunities and barriers to sports participation that exist for different 
groups of people, including by equality strand and socio-economic groups;  

8. We would like to impress upon the committee what we know. 
 

9. We know there is little research commissioned in to discrimination in sport. 
We have been told that it is difficult as the sample size is small for it to be 
statistically significant.  We have been told that to conduct a statistically viable 
survey would be too expensive.  Even after we have suggested that 
qualitative research is more appropriate, and more important, we still have not 
been able to access research grant support.  

 
10. This is why we are embarking on a small qualitative research initiative of our 

own, and are in dialogue with Welsh academic institutions to conduct such a 
piece of work on our behalf.  It is also why we support a bid being made by a 
new institute named the Research and Verification Institute to the lottery 
whose main aim is to commission research pertinent to minority ethnic 
communities.  

 
11. We know also the lack of participation in sport by ethnic minority communities 

is complex.  And there is a tendency to simplify and stereotype the different 
communities without a real comprehension of these communities’ aspirations 
and culture.  

 
12. For example, there is a marked difference between the Pakistani, 

Bangladeshi, Hindu communities in themselves, yet they are classed as Asian 
and provision of services to them are seen as homogenised.  Similarly we 
class African and Caribbean as though they too are homogenised, we do not 
understand the difference between the South Korean and the Chinese, 
between the Somali and the Sudanese and the list can go on.  

 
13. One can be forgiven for thinking that when it comes to playing sport, if all we 

did was to provide the opportunity for these communities to play that they 
would take up the opportunity.  Many of the communities too would like that. 
The problem is, it’s not that simple.  

 
14. Refugees and asylum seekers are told that they not entitled to facilities.  We 

know for many years they went and played in open parks in unstructured 
games for fear that if they accepted ‘support’ their status would be affected. 
Yet they still managed to host a refugee world cup between their own 
communities.  

 

Page 2



15. Then we create rules for people to participate, and we are not referring to the 
rules of a game.  For example, to engage in one of the Football leagues, a 
team needs a designated pitch and posses £6,000 (I think this is the right 
figure) in their bank account.  We are told this is in case they are fined or have 
to pay the referees costs.  We know many working class young people and 
minority ethnic communities who simply cannot afford this.  

 
16. This is further complicated by the discrimination faced by communities, their 

status in the society in which they live, and, how young people perceive and 
witness what is happening around them.  This goes for both white and Black 
young people. 

 
17. We know young people from minority communities who are grappling with the 

desires and attractions of western and eastern society.  Between the 
requirements of religious observance and the demands of the being involved 
with their peer group. 

 
18. In once sense a young person who has a non traditional family has a real 

advantage, as they can access the best of both worlds, but this is not the case 
for a great majority of Asian communities.  Nor is this analysis the same for 
the African-Caribbean, Chinese communities or the Somali, Sudanese, 
Arabic, Polish, Bulgarian and a plethora of other communities who live in 
Wales.  

 
19. What we know is we need to engage these communities on their terms; we 

need to improve our image of how we will look after the interest of their young 
people, not simple to promote our own tick box mentality that we have 
captured another targeted person for our statistic.  

 
20. And we must not forget that even within these communities there are ism’s 

that exist and which we need to be able to positively challenge, particularly 
with regards to young minority ethnic women and their engagement in sports. 
And herein lies the dichotomy, were these issues to be challenged we may 
lose access to the communities, if we continued without challenging we are 
complicit with forms of discrimination.  It is not surprising that such sports 
organisations engage with a light touch and in many cases we use 
gatekeepers to justify our not tackling those issues.   

 
21. We know we have to build trust and make an effort to create new and long 

terms opportunities. 
 

22. We know that there is direct correlation between fighting racism and 
discrimination and increased participation.  We know from our communities 
own history, and our experience of playing in main stream and minority 
football, that young people play to enjoy but only if it is safe to do so.  Be it in 
a school environment, in a youth club, or in a structured league if there is, 
even a perception, that players, supported or coaches are racist or that there 
is unfairness or bias towards one community or one group, then young people 
who do not ‘fit in’ will disengage.  Creating a level playing field by challenging 
racism and discrimination does increase participating.  Yet this is not a priority 

Page 3



on any of the sporting body’s radar, no doubt they will promoting equality is, 
but there is a big difference between promoting equality and tackling and 
challenging racism.  

 
23. And we would challenge this Committee to itemise the expenditure the 

government spends in sport on minority ethnic sport and sports clubs that are 
ethnically based?  

 
24. We know that the participation of minority ethnic communities is affected by 

the following: 
 

• Racism/discrimination in the classroom, school and playground; 

• The lack of positive role models; 

• The lack of safe playing environments; 

• The unwillingness of institutions to act quickly and swiftly in tacking 
discrimination on off and around the playing arenas ; 

• The cultural aspirations of individual families for their children’s future; 

• The cultural and religious beliefs of communities, and the failure of sports 
organisers to adapt and amend their practices; 

• The constant battle young minority ethnic people face between eastern and 
western aspirations; 

• The unwillingness by institutions to accept that participation is more important 
than their view that specific events for specific communities is ‘apartheid’; 

• The unwillingness by sporting institutions to accept that to encourage 
participation by minority ethnic communities involved challenging and 
combating racism and discrimination and to foster an environment of safe 
playing arenas for such communities.  

 

25. We know that a government sponsored programmes to combat racism 
and challenge discrimination sends a message to individual and 
communities that such behaviour is unacceptable.  If this is then 
coupled with those organisations responsible for sports and their 
governing bodies taking the issue seriously, having procedures to 
tackle issues quickly, effectively and with the power to impose 
penalties, the battle to improve minority ethnic participation is half 
way there.  The problem is a lack of leadership, and unwillingness to 
accept that racism exists, and organisations who hope the matter will 
go away even when it is raised with them.  

 
26. We would be very willing to attend and answer any question the 

committee may have in respect of our contribution.  
 
 

 

                 Sanjiv Vedi       Sunil Patel 

           Chair SRTRC Wales     Campaign Manager SRTRC Wales 

Page 4



Paper 2 

National Assembly for Wales 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 

Inquiry into participation levels in sport in Wales  

Response from : National Union of Teachers 
 
1. The extent to which the Welsh Government and Sport Wales are achieving 

the goals set out in the Programme for Government, the Creating an Active 
Wales action plan and the Vision for Sport in Wales with regard to 
participation levels in sport. 

 
It is quite plain to see that the Government is not achieving the goals it set out to 
achieve in the Programme for Government, which was to, through Sport Wales, 
widen participation in sport and programmes targeted at increasing physical activity. 
There has been a decline in the percentage of both Primary and Secondary school 
children participating in sport or active recreation with a 12% decline in secondary 
school pupil participation from 2009 to 2011. 

 

We would envisage that this decline could mostly be put down to pupils, mostly girls, 
who are in year 10 and 11 in secondary school not being engaged in being active for 
a number of reasons, including lack of enjoyment in the sports/activities on offer at 
school therefore a reluctance to continue outside school, vanity (not wanting to 
sweat, etc), peer pressure, and family pressures (having to work after school and at 
weekends).  How this trend can be reversed is a very difficult one to answer but 
getting children active and enjoying being active is essential if they are to continue to 
be active after school and when they leave full time education.  Being active and 
healthy should be a way of life and the future generation of adults can only be active 
and healthy if they see a need to be active and that that need can be fulfilled.  If they 
enjoy competing in team sports such as football, rugby, netball and hockey (which 
are the 4 main team sports taught in schools) then there must be a clear and easy 
progression for them from school sport to a local club and they must be able to see 
this progression and be able to make use of it.  There should be enough local clubs 
for them all to be able to join and enjoy themselves, and if this is not the case, then 
there must be some sort of financial assistance, guidance and advice available in 
order to set up a club. 
 

The same can be said for individual sports, which includes keeping fit by going to the 
gym.  Extra-curricular participation, and not just after school clubs, is influenced by 
the quality and number of facilities that are easily available in the catchment area. 
There are far more individual sports on offer for children to participate in than there 
are team sports so the needs of these children have to be addressed.  The biggest 
reason for children not carrying on with organised sport after school and when they 
leave full time education is the lack of local clubs or facilities which are accessible to 
them.  Another major factor is enjoyment, or the lack of enjoyment when it comes to 
drop out rates.  Children need to have fun and it’s essential that they enjoy 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



themselves when being active and choose an activity which they enjoy and get a real 
benefit in its participation. 

 
Whilst the overall participation figures in primary schools is relatively positive at 78%, 
it would be interesting to see the geography of those surveyed in order to compare 
those children who live in the major towns and cities, where there are more clubs 
and access to facilities is better, to those that live in the rural communities of Wales, 
where there are fewer clubs and a reduced number of good quality facilities. 
It’s disappointing to see that the number of children under 16 making use of the free 
swimming has dropped considerably since 2008/09.  Part of the problem could be 
that quite a few swimming pools have been closed down during this period but what 
also must be taken into consideration is the age and gender of those who don’t take 
advantage of the offer.  It’s very possible that the same group of children, girls in 
years 10 and 11 in secondary school, are the ones not engaging with the offer 
possibly due to reason such as lack of enjoyment of swimming, not being able to 
swim, vanity, lack of self-esteem (body consciousness) and family pressures (having 
to work after school and at weekends). 
 
Focusing on increasing the number participating in structured sporting activities 
provided in school holidays and at weekends is good but, according to the 2011/12 
figures there has been a decline in both free swims and the number participating in 
structured sporting activities since 2010/11.  We need to know how that is 
progressing in 2012/13 to see if the trend is continuing and need to address it if it is. 
 
Sport Wales’ Community Strategy 
 
The content of Sport Wales’ Community Sport Strategy is very encouraging and if 
the priorities are met then it will have been a resounding success.  However, there 
are two things which are a cause for concern. 
 
Firstly, under the ‘Quality Education’ priority it is expected that Sport Wales will ‘work 
closely with the education sector to ensure head teachers and governors value the 
importance of PE’ but two of its success criteria, namely ‘delivery of 2 hours of high 
quality PE to every young person each week’ and ‘every teacher trained to deliver 
high quality PE’ are worrying.  The reason they are worrying is because in the vast 
majority of secondary schools in Wales, pupils in Key Stage 4 receive only 1 hour of 
timetabled PE a week unless they choose PE as a GCSE subject.  This is worrying 
as this is the age where, as Sport Wales’ research shows, pupils get disengaged 
with sport.  Therefore, Sport Wales and the Welsh Government should ensure that 
these pupils in Key Stage 4 get a minimum of 2 hours timetabled PE every week and 
not the 1 hour that the vast majority currently get.  Also, the Welsh Government 
needs to ensure that all PE teachers, regardless of age and experience, have 
access to vital training in order that they can deliver the high quality PE that Sport 
Wales wants.  This means that an element of funding is required in order to cover 
any costs (course fees, supply teachers, etc) that schools will incur in ensuring they 
get the training. 
 
Secondly, the message from the Minister for Housing, Regeneration and Heritage, 
Huw Lewis AM, says that the Welsh Government will ‘continue to support our current 
and future talented athletes to bring success that we can celebrate together’.  He 

Page 6



therefore needs to ensure that national Associations, such as the Welsh Schools 
Athletics Association (WSAA), are allowed to continue to nurture the athletes of the 
future by ensuring they are properly funded to do so.  The English Schools Athletics 
Association national championships are shown live on sky sports, and are probably 
paid a handsome amount for allowing them to be shown.  We’re not saying this 
should be the case here in Wales, but the national championships and Wales’ 
participation in the subsequent under 17 Schools International Athletic Board 
championships against England, Scotland and Ireland should be safeguarded by 
means of funding or we will lose our future Commonwealth Games and Olympic 
hopefuls. 
 
Whilst lottery funding of £9m over 3 years is to be greatly welcomed, Sport Wales 
must decide very carefully how to spend this money and ensure that it has the 
maximum impact on attracting children to become active and get hooked on sport. 
 
2. The availability of datasets and statistics to measure participation levels in 

sport, particularly those disaggregated by equality strand and socio-
economic groups. 

 
To the best of our knowledge the only datasets which have been made know in this 
inquiry are the ones Sport Wales have gathered on Primary and Secondary school 
children participation rates. 
 
It would be an idea for the Welsh Government, in conjunction with Sport Wales, to 
research the participation rates of those included in the different equality strands and 
more so those children who live in the deprived areas in Wales.  I’m sure that the 
results of such a study would be eye-opening as those families with low incomes 
wouldn’t be able to afford to pay club membership for their children, let alone 
purchase the equipment necessary to participate fully in their chosen activity.  It is 
the very same families who would usually purchase low cost, processed, unhealthy 
food to feed their children, which ultimately leads to an increase in children being 
overweight or obese.  This would then lead to them being less active as they find it 
either embarrassing, due to low self-esteem and mental well-being problems, or find 
it too hard, due to being overweight or obese, to be able to participate.  In a way it 
can be seen as a vicious circle and the ones to suffer always seem to be the low 
income families who live in deprived areas of Wales.  
 
3. The opportunities and barriers to sports participation that exist for 

different groups of people, including by equality strand and socio-
economic groups. 

 

Opportunities 
 
Sport Wales’ community Strategy is a great opportunity to increase sport 
participation in Wales, and if they get it right then this could have a major impact.  As 
for specific opportunities, there is a great opportunity here to get children who come 
from low income families and who are living in poverty active and into sport. 
 
Barriers 

Page 7



 
As mentioned in point two above, those families with low incomes wouldn’t be able to 
afford to pay club membership for their children, let alone purchase the equipment 
necessary to participate fully in their chosen activity.  It is the very same families who 
would usually purchase low cost, processed, unhealthy food to feed their children, 
which ultimately leads to an increase in children being overweight or obese.  This 
would then lead to them being less active as they find it either embarrassing, due to 
low self-esteem and mental well-being problems, or find it too hard, due to being 
overweight or obese, to be able to participate.  In a way it can be seen as a vicious 
circle and the ones to suffer always seem to be the low income families who live in 
deprived areas of Wales.  
 
Another major barrier is the lack of provision of good quality facilities in the 
communities in Wales.  With the climate in Wales changing where we see a lot more 
rain and floods, every Secondary school in Wales should have access to an all-
weather surface.  The wet weather must be a major headache to those schools who 
don’t have this facility, especially when their playing fields (the PE teacher’s 
classroom) are flooded and cannot be used.  This facility should also be made 
available to the public outside school hours and at weekends where it can be hired 
and the money used to recoup some of the costs involved with running it.  Only by 
meeting this need can those schools without this facility engage more children and 
ensure a higher standard of Physical Education in our schools.  The Primary schools 
in the catchment area should also be able to make use of this facility when it’s not 
being used as this will can hopefully catch them at a younger age and get them 
interested in sport and being active.  It’s not just football and hockey than this facility 
can be used for, but for many other activities as well. 
 
4. What are the links between programmes to develop sport in Wales and 

other Welsh Government initiatives to increase physical activity. 
 
We are aware, after the inquiry into child obesity in Wales, that other Welsh 
Government initiatives do exist in order to increase physical activity. 
 
MEND 

MEND has been in existence and going into schools since 2005 and whilst it may 
have had a positive impact on many children’s lives, the truth of the matter is that we 
still have 36% of children who are overweight or obese and this figure has increased 
or stayed constant for a number of years now.  In order to properly evaluate MEND’s 
impact we need to know exactly what they recommend as a healthy diet, as this is 
the key to a child’s health and well-being.  They could be active 5 days a week but it 
wouldn’t make much difference to their health if the food they ate was processed, 
unhealthy food (sugar and processed carbohydrates being the two main culprits). 
The change in dietary advice in 1983 told us all to start eating between 55-60% 
carbohydrates in our diet and since this change in advice obesity has rocketed in 
Wales and the UK.  I’m sure there is a positive correlation here between the increase 
in obesity and the decrease in physical activity. 

 
Cross cutting programmes for example leisure and sport related programmes 
such as Creating an Active Wales 

Page 8



 
Getting children active is an excellent idea for them to have a healthier lifestyle but 
exercise alone will not reduce obesity levels unless the children’s diet is changed. 
With a change in diet and an increase in physical activity our obese and overweight 
children have a chance of losing weight and getting back some essential self-esteem 
and our healthier children can have an active and healthy childhood.  Being healthy 
is a way of life and needs to be encouraged if obesity rates in our children are going 
to fall.  Therefore a campaign encouraging both could be very beneficial.  Eating the 
right, healthy food (real food and not processed sugar and carbohydrates) can give 
children more energy to burn whilst taking part in sport and other activities.  Children 
need to be educated in order to see how and why this is the case.  With this in mind, 
the ‘eatwell’ plate needs to be withdrawn from all schools and public places and 
replaced with advice on which real, healthy foods to eat and in what proportions. 
Only when this is done will the children of Wales start losing weight and get more 
active and hence work towards the Welsh Governments initiatives. 
 
Tackling Child Poverty 
 
It will be interesting to see how Sport Wales goes about tackling child poverty 
through community sport.  I’m sure there are very many youngsters who live in 
poverty with the talent needed to become professional athletes in their chosen sport 
but need a chance to discover their talent and some guidance to learn how to nurture 
that talent and use it for their benefit. 
 
5. The impact of the Olympic and Paralympic legacy, The Ryder Cup and other 

high profile Welsh sporting events and achievements on participation levels 
in Wales. 

 
Having two professional football teams in the English Premier League in season 
2013/14 will have a huge effect on participation levels in those areas, especially 
children wanting to participate.  But, rather than waste millions of pounds in making a 
bid for the 2026 Commonwealth Games, Cardiff Council should look to reverse the 
increase in the cost of hiring park football pitches, which has been increased from 
£38 per match to £55 per match, as it will have a huge negative effect on established 
clubs who regularly use those facilities.  The same can be said for rugby and cricket 
clubs who use the park pitches as the fee for playing rugby has increased from 
£20.50 to £60 and the fee for playing cricket has increased from £26.80 to £55. 
Many of these clubs have stated that they will not be in a position to continue as they 
wouldn’t be able to cover the costs, as it’s not just about paying for the playing and 
changing areas as they have to pay the referees costs, buy playing kit, nets, and 
other items which are not cheap to buy, and in this current economic climate, this 
could mean clubs folding and this would be a tragedy.  The future and longevity of 
these clubs are the youngsters of today.  If they have no clubs to join then their 
participation in that sport will be lost.  The main reason for the unhappiness over this 
increase in fees is the fact that the facilities as they stand are very, very poor and 
clubs are reluctant to pay nearly double the fee with no improvement in the facilities. 
Any money, or at the very least part of the money, which could be earmarked for a 
bid to host the Commonwealth Games should be invested into improving the 
facilities currently on offer and if this was done then I’m sure the increase in fees 
would be viewed differently.  The Cardiff Council increase could be the first step in 

Page 9



other councils increasing their fees for the use of park pitches and facilities.  This is 
something which is unique to the big cities in Wales, and South Wales in particular, 
as in mid and north Wales nearly all Saturday league football, rugby and cricket is 
played on clubs own pitches, which are owned by the clubs themselves, or on school 
pitches. 
 
As the steering group have now completed their feasibility studies into the 4 main 
work streams with regards to the bid for the 2026 Commonwealth Games and have 
reported back to Ministers before the Summer of 2012, it would be beneficial to know 
the outcome of these studies and what decision the Ministers came to after their 
meeting. 
 
The initial impact of the Ryder Cup legacy was seen to be an excellent one for 
Newport and for golf in general as Golf Union Wales stated that 40% more boys 
under 18, and 60% more girls took up membership in 2011, thanks to the 'Securing 
the Future' Ryder Cup Legacy Fund.  However, it would be good to see what those 
figures were for 2012.  We did request information from Golf Union Wales but have 
been informed that they are responding directly to this inquiry so no further 
information was forthcoming.  It would also be good to know if any funding has been 
given to golf clubs around Wales in order to improve their current facilities to make 
golf more appealing to youngsters. 
 
The impact of the Olympic and Paralympic legacy has been minimal here in Wales. 
Some clubs, immediately after the Olympics, saw a large number of young people 
showing an interest and these have been in the sports which Team GB were 
successful during the Olympics, such as cycling, boxing and athletics.  It would be 
interesting to find out what participation is like now, nearly 10 months after the 
Olympics ended. 
 
The Olympic and Paralympic legacy shouldn’t only be just about young people taking 
an interest in sport, but it should be about investing money into grass root sports by 
improving existing and building new facilities, and also getting more coaches 
involved with clubs by offering excellent coach education opportunities which are 
cost effective.  Doing this could increase participation but it could also lead to 
inspiring the next generation of Commonwealth, Olympic and Paralympic athletes. 
Therefore, investment in elite, national sports, especially at school level, is also 
essential.  The Welsh Schools Athletics Association (WSAA), who helped bring 
through world class athletes such as Colin Jackson, Iwan Thomas and Jamie 
Baulch, and assisted in the development of others such as David Guest, who is a 
British Decathlete, and Non Stanford, who was a Schools International Athletic 
Board medallist in cross country and who is now a top class triathlete, are in danger 
of folding as they have no funding other than what’s paid to the Association from 
school affiliation fees.  With funding in schools now being cut all the time, this is 
getting to be less and less and the Association will cease to exist unless the Olympic 
legacy is passed on and they receive funding.  Allowing the Association to fade away 
will have a huge negative effect on athletics in Wales and with athletics being one of 
the most successful events for Team GB at London 2012 then this, which comes 
under the vision for sport in Wales’ Sporting Excellence key priority, cannot be 
allowed to happen.  I’m sure there are other national Associations in the same 
predicament as the WSAA and these must also not be allowed to simply fade away. 

Page 10



 

Inquiry into Participation 

Levels in Sport in Wales 
 

31st May 2013 

 

Paper 3 
 
National Assembly for Wales 
 

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee 
 

Inquiry into participation levels in sport in Wales  
 
Response from : Welsh Local Government Association 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Inquiry into Participation Levels in Sport in Wales 

Welsh Local Government Association - 31st May 2013 
 

 

2 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) represents the 22 local authorities in 

Wales, and the three national park authorities, the three fire and rescue authorities, 

and four police authorities are associate members.   

 

2. It seeks to provide representation to local authorities within an emerging policy 

framework that satisfies the key priorities of our members and delivers a broad range 

of services that add value to Welsh Local Government and the communities they 

serve. 

 

3. The WLGA welcomes the opportunity to respond to the inquiry into participation levels 

in Sport in Wales. In drafting this response, the WLGA has worked in partnership with 

The Chief Culture and Leisure Officers in Wales (CCLOW). 

 

4. Local Authorities in Wales are committed to the delivery of Sport and Physical activity  

both for its own sake and for the significant benefits it brings to its citizens through 

Community cohesion, Health and Wellbeing, Economic development and Education 

standards. They provide a wide variety of facilities ranging from sports halls, 

swimming pools, playing fields, athletics tracks etc.  

 

5. There is a close working partnership between the WLGA, local authorities, Welsh 

Government and Sport Wales on the delivery of the Programme for Government, 

Creating an Active Wales and the Vision for Sport in Wales. It is clearly recognised by 

all partners that without close cooperation there would be a significant reduction in 

opportunities provided and a decrease in participation in Sport and Physical activity. 

This close working relationship was developed and became more formalised in 2012-

2013 through the collaboration work instigated by the Simpson Review. 

 

6. It was agreed by the partners that the use of a Results Based Accountability scorecard 

and of sharing best practice should form the basis of collaboration in particular 

between local authorities and Sport Wales. 

 

7. CCLOW have with Sport Wales and the WLGA created a national scorecard that 

ensures the relevant parties are “united behind common outcomes” in particular in 

terms of the impact on participation levels in sport.  

Page 12



 

8. Underpinning the national scorecard four regional scorecards are being developed in 

Wales, the South East, South Central, North, Mid and West.  Each local authority has 

its scorecard that underpins the regional priorities. 

 

9. Sport Wales with the WLGA and CCLOW have developed and are piloting a new way 

forward for the methodology by which funding will in future be invested in local 

authorities by Sport Wales which will hold local authorities more accountable for 

raising standards and participation rates 

 

10. In the present very difficult financial constraints local authorities have been identifying 

more efficient and effective delivery models for their sport and leisure services.  Some 

e.g. Vale of Glamorgan, Bridgend and Torfaen have outsourced their leisure service to 

an external contractor, external trust and an internal arms length trust. Neath Port 

Talbot have operated under an in house arms length trust since 1996. Other local 

authorities after detailed options appraisals have determined that the continuation of 

an in-house service is their best way forward whilst other local authorities are at this 

time going through their detailed options appraisals and will shortly be making their 

decisions on their preferred delivery mechanism.  In all cases the overriding factor in 

the local authorities decision making has not been solely financial but sustainability, 

efficiency, effectiveness, continuity, quality, improved facilities, improved opportunities 

for Sport , and increased public access have been at the forefront of their thinking and 

decision making. 

 

11. Participation level is measured via local indicators and National surveys, the main ones 

being :- 

• Welsh Health Survey 

• Active Adults Survey (Sport Wales) 

• Active Young People Survey (Sport Wales) 

• School Sport Survey (Sport Wales) 

• Local Authority Partnership agreement (Sport Wales) 

• Wales Data unit 

The dilemma with the timing of the inquiry is that the data from these surveys is not    

available for 2012/13 and will only become available in the autumn.  

Indications from local authority data that has still to be finalised is that there has been 

a general increase in sports participation across Wales.  

 

 

Page 13



Inquiry into Participation Levels in Sport in Wales 

Welsh Local Government Association - 31st May 2013 
 

 

4 

12. In respect of Sports development data this is fed into the Sport Wales research unit as 

a part of the Local Authority Partnership agreement. This data covers frequency of 

participation, analysis by age and gender. This data is being completed for 2012/13 

and should be available shortly. 

 

13. Many of the programmes in local authorities to develop sport in Wales are carried out 

in partnership with Sport Wales or specifically with governing bodies. e.g. Dragon 

Sport, 5x60, outdoor adventure, Free Swim, Disability Sport Wales, PESS, Local 

Development plans. 

 

14. There are excellent examples across all Welsh local authorities on how Opportunities 

for sports participation have been created and barriers removed that exist for different 

groups of people, including by equality strand and socio economic groups. 

 

15. All local authorities work in partnership with disability sport to create opportunities for 

sports participation through the insport model. The model encourages both integration 

of people with disabilities into main stream sport and opportunities for people with a 

different range of disabilities to come together to compete in teams or as individuals. 

Swimming is an excellent example where there are clubs for disabled participants 

which are linked to mainstream swimming clubs where individuals with a disability also 

participate. 

 

16. Local authorities are very conscious of their need to undertake equality impact 

assessments as a part of their programming of facilities and opportunities. Some 

excellent examples of local authorities responding to their responsibility to ensure 

barriers associated with poverty have and are being removed are linked to sensitively 

delivered concessionary pricing policies offering significant discounts for family tickets 

and for those in receipt of benefits, e.g. the Cardiff City Council Max Active card offers 

a 50% concession on all leisure activities for those on benefits and through targeted 

marketing participation levels grew by 24% in 2012/13. 

 

17. An excellent example of a clear link between Welsh Government initiatives to increase 

physical activity that has had a direct benefit to Sport in Wales is the Free Swim 

Initiative for under 16’s.  Although initially launched as a free splash the initiative has 

developed from encouraging increased participation to an element of more structured 

activity targeting non swimmers often on free school meals whose parents could not 

afford swimming lessons at their local pool. The children along with those attending 

Page 14



 

the free splash are linked into the local authority and welsh swimming governing body, 

National Swimming plan, and aquatics pathway which is seeing an increase in the 

number of club swimmers and which should result in more high calibre swimmers in 

the future. Also the children are provided opportunities to pursue other aquatic 

activities, e.g. surfing, sailing and sub aqua which they could not have accessed 

without first having the free splash opportunity, then the structured learning sessions. 

This particular programme also links strongly with the Key stage 2 curriculum of 

children swimming 25 metres by 11 years of age.  CCLOW have made swimming a key 

outcome target of all children swimming by 11yrs and the recent results of using the 

Welsh Government funding, targeting resources, sharing best practice has brought 

about ambitious and significant changes in the target number of children able to swim. 

 

18. The results from the Sport Wales school sports survey will provide valuable 

information on the upturn in club membership rates and levels of participation as a 

result of the impact and legacy work of the Olympic and Paralympics Games. 

There is clear evidence from local authorities that there has been an impact in 

particular through Sport Wales Community Chest grant funding for Olympic and 

Paralympics legacy projects.  

 

E.g. Pembrokeshire County Council  

• 59 newly trained volunteers 

• 8 new junior teams 

• 2 new senior teams 

• 255 new junior community sport members 

• 52 new senior sport community club members 

• 23 additional sessions per week 

 

         E.g. Cardiff City Council 

• Olympic Legacy Programme - The Road to Rio 

• Cardiff Council launched its Legacy programme in February 2013, which 

has 3 legacy strands. Each strand is led by the relevant sector partner as 

identified below: 

1. Sport/Physical Activity - Leisure 

2. Health (includes Diet & Nutrition) - Public Health Wales 

3. Cultural - Arts Development 

• Linking the scheme to the Free Swim Initiative for the 16 and under age 

group during the February Half Term helped to increase participation in 

FSI Structured activities by 50% compared to 2011/12.   

Page 15



Inquiry into Participation Levels in Sport in Wales 

Welsh Local Government Association - 31st May 2013 
 

 

6 

• There has been a 20% increase in club membership in Cardiff’s 19 priority 

sports since 2011-12. 

 

19.    The WLGA apologies for the lack of detailed performance in respect of participation  

in Sport in this report. As explained earlier in the response this is directly associated 

with the timing of the Inquiry and the main sources of data collection through the 

Heath survey and Sports Wales. It is anticipated that further local authority detail on 

participation will be available at the oral stage of the inquiry where the WLGA are 

pleased to be able to give further evidence. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For further information please contact: 
 

Peter Gomer 

peter.gomer@wlga.gov.uk  
 

Welsh Local Government Association 
Local Government House 

Drake walk 

Cardiff 

CF10 4LG 

 

 

Page 16



Agenda Item 6

Page 17

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 7a

Page 22



Page 23



Agenda Item 7b

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Agenda Item 7c

Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Agenda Item 7d

Page 36



A
genda Item

 7e

P
age 37



P
age 38


	Agenda
	2 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 4
	3 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 5
	4 Inquiry into participation levels in sport - evidence session 6
	6 Inquiry into the future of equality and human rights in Wales - key issues
	7a Letter from Minister for Natural Resources and Food - update on actions following the meeting on 23 May 2013
	7b Letter from the Minister for Culture and Sport - Update on action following the meeting on 15 May 2013
	7c Letter from Chair of Petitions Committee re petition - Coed Cadw Cymru
	7d Letter from Steve Thomas CBE, Chief Executive, Welsh Local Government Association re meeting on 5 June 2013
	7e Letter from Paula Walters, Director, NHS Centre for Equality and Human Rights

